
 
 
 
 
A Meeting of an INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER 
DECISION will be held at SF2 Civic Offices, Shute End, 
Wokingham, RG40 1BN on TUESDAY 16 MAY 2017 AT 
11.00 AM 
 
 

 
Andy Couldrick 
Chief Executive 
Published on 8 May 2017 
 
 
 
 
This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s 
website. 

 
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control.

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

Our Vision 

A great place to live, an even better place to do business 

Our Priorities 

Improve educational attainment and focus on every child 
achieving their potential 

Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social and 
economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business growth 

Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and 
supported by well designed development 

Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough 

Improve the customer experience when accessing Council 
services 

The Underpinning Principles 

Offer excellent value for your Council Tax 

Provide affordable homes 

Look after the vulnerable 

Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life 

Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and fuel 
efficiency 

Deliver quality in all that we do 

 



 

 

For consideration by 
 
Malcolm Richards, Executive Member for Highways and Transport 
 
Officers Present 
David Wilby, Policy and Strategy Manager 
Arabella Yandle, Democratic Services Officer 
 
 

IMD NO. WARD SUBJECT 

    
1. IMD 
2017/15 

None Specific CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO THE DRAFT 
AIRPORTS NATIONAL POLICY STATEMENT 
Purpose:  To approve Council response to the 
Consultation on the Draft Airports National 
Policy Statement 

5 - 14 

 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
Arabella Yandle Democratic Services Officer 
Tel 0118 974 6059 
Email arabella.yandle@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION 
REFERENCE IMD: 2017/15 

 
TITLE DfT  Consultation on Draft Airports National 

Policy Statement: new runway capacity and 
infrastructure at airports in the South East of 
England 

  
DECISION TO BE MADE BY Executive Member for Highways and Transport, 

Malcolm Richards 
 

DATE AND TIME 16 May 2017 at 11am  
  
WARD All Wards 
  
DIRECTOR Interim Director of Environment, Josie Wragg 

  
REPORT TO BE PUBLISHED ON 16th May 2017 
  
VENUE Shute End Second Floor room SF2 
 

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY 
None 
 
The consultation draft, Airports National Policy Statement, seeks stakeholders 
responses to a 9 structured question regarding: 
 

 The Government’s policy in relation to the need for new airport capacity in the South 
East of England; 

 The Government’s preference for the Heathrow Northwest Runway scheme to 
deliver additional airport capacity; and 

 The requirements the applicant will need to meet in order to secure development 
consent for the preferred scheme. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That Members support the Council’s response regarding the draft Airports National 
Policy Statement consultation. (see supporting paper) 
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
The draft Airports National Policy Statement (NPS) consultation considers building an 
evidence base for airport capacity improvements in the south east to develop the 
Development Consent Order process needed to increase runway capacity at Heathrow. 
The draft NPS does not deal with detailed design of the North West runway at 
Heathrow.  
 
1) The Department for Transport (DfT) want to hear views on whether the draft  

Airports NPS provides the evidence base to progress with a Development Consent 
Order for a new Heathrow runway; and 

2) The proposed package of supporting measures expected from communities 
impacted by the expansion. 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item IMD15



 

Background 
The DfT are developing the process for increasing runway capacity in the South East of 
England, as per the outcomes of the Davis Commission in 2015. In parallel with current 
consultation on UK Airspace and the way that could operate in the future, taking 
advantage of the way that modern aircraft navigate. 
 
The consultation paper deals with the need to develop a sufficient evidence base to 
shape the development consent order needed to deliver a new runway at Heathrow. 
A Development Consent Order (DCO) is the means of obtaining permission for 
developments categorised as Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects.  
 
Analysis of Issues 
The main points for WBC to cover are noise and surface access. 
 
Aircraft noise in regard to the draft NPS is a consideration, however aircraft noise is 
much more likely to be affected by the planned changes to flight patterns and intensity 
of used flight paths which is covered by the UK Airspace Policy Consultation. 
Wokingham Borough is located far enough away from the airport to fall outside the 
threshold where action needs to be taken. In previous DfT publications Wokingham 
Borough is shown to be outside the 57dB contour line and therefore in terms of this 
consultation evidence regarding noise has already been consider for the DCO. 
 
In relation to surface access, Wokingham Borough’s position is represented by the 
Thames Valley Berkshire Economic Partnership, which is in support of capacity 
improvement at Heathrow. Wokingham Borough Council is signed up to supporting 
Western Rail Access and improvement to the M4 improves capacity through the 
Managed Motorway programme. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result 
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent 
reductions to public sector funding.  It is estimated that Wokingham Borough 
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the 
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context. 
 

 How much will it 
Cost/ (Save) 

Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

£0   

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

£0   

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

£0   

 

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision 

There are no financial impacts to WBC that result from this consultation 

 

Cross-Council Implications  
 

 
 

Page 6



 

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

Director – Finance and Resources No comment 

Monitoring Officer No comment 

Leader of the Council No comment 

  

 

List of Background Papers 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/draft-airports-national-policy-statement  
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/589099/u
k-airspace-policy-consultation-executive-summary.pdf 
 

 

Contact  Dave Wilby  Service  Highways and Transport 

Telephone No  0118 974 6468 Email  Dave.Wilby@wokingham.gov.uk  

Date  21/04/2017 Version No.  2 

 

Page 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/draft-airports-national-policy-statement
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/589099/uk-airspace-policy-consultation-executive-summary.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/589099/uk-airspace-policy-consultation-executive-summary.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 

1 
 

Wokingham Borough Council Response to the Consultation on the Draft 

Airports National Policy Statement 

 

The consultation Draft Airports National Policy Statement (Draft NPS) sets out 

Government’s policy on the need for a Northwest runway at Heathrow Airport to 

provide additional airport capacity in the south of England by 2030.  

The draft NPS explores and develops the rationale regarding the evidence base for 

progressing a Development Consent Order (DCO), needed to grant permission for 

Heathrow to progress with construction. At present the time line for securing a DCO 

is unclear although DfT has suggested that this might be achieved in the early 

2020’s, possibly 2022, leading to a runway be delivered by 2030. 

The Draft NPS asks nine consultation questions, not all of which are applicable to 

Wokingham Borough Council. Consultation responses are to be with DfT by May 25th 

2017. 

Below is the Council’s response to questions posed in draft NPS: 

Question 1 – The need for additional airport capacity. 

Wokingham Borough Council considers that the need for additional runway capacity 

in South East England was clearly illustrated by the reports of the Airports 

Commission. 

The economic wellbeing of residents and businesses located in Wokingham Borough 

is, in part, dependent on its proximity to Heathrow. This has led to clusters of multi-

national businesses establishing themselves in the Borough’s various business 

parks.  The Council recognises that Heathrow is operating near capacity and this 

needs to be addressed for economic reasons as per the Airports Commission’s 

findings. Additional capacity at Heathrow will secure and improve economic 

prospects for residents and businesses in Wokingham Borough. 

There is undoubtedly a need for further airport capacity (close to London itself) and 

this is recognised in all the previous reports, and is attempted to be addressed by 

this proposed expansion.   

However, the extended timescale in making the decision, and the very long 

timescale in the proposed development up to live operation, is such that it may be 

too late in the game to compete effectively with its larger European competitors – 

who are already well advanced in their offerings. Could our overall timescale be 

speeded up, to better match our existing competitors’ airports?  

Do we have the right timescale to compete effectively, and how confident are we of 

the estimate of our future share of the air travel. If the numeric estimates of future 

business or our timescales are wrong (too slow) then that can affect future 

development plans and future funding. This aspect is particularly important if there 

were to be any delays (in decisions or construction) or lack of full funding when 

needed. We are concerned what happens if there are major delays for any 

Page 9



Appendix 

2 
 

construction/funding reasons, or any other unplanned situation; do we get left with a 

part completed airport and un coordinated surface level – Is there a Plan B?   

Question 2 – How best to address the need for additional airport capacity in 

the South East of England by 2030. This could be through the Heathrow 

Northwest Runway scheme (the Government’s preferred scheme), the Gatwick 

Second Runway scheme, the Heathrow Extended Northern Runway scheme, or 

any other scheme. 

Wokingham Borough Council considers the economic case for expansion of 

Heathrow to be clear as per the Airports Commission report. 

There were 2 schemes submitted for Heathrow; the extended northern runway 

proposed by Heathrow Hub (together with a hub interchange station on the Great 

Western Main Line) and the Northwest runway proposed by Heathrow Airport 

Limited.  

The Council, in line with the Thames Valley Berkshire LEP, supports the choice of 

Heathrow Airport Limited’s Northwest runway as the preferred option as it offers the 

greatest additional capacity together with less operational risk.   

Question 3 – The Secretary of State will use a range of assessment principles 

when considering any application for a Northwest Runway at Heathrow 

Airport. Please tell us your views. 

Wokingham Borough considers the list of criteria in section 5, ‘Assessment 

Principles’ to be relevant to the completion of the DCO process. However we 

suggest that the list would benefit from inducing clarity around traffic impact 

assessments on major and local corridors in regards of impact on pollution control 

and other environmental protection regimes.  

Wokingham Borough Council suggests the necessary transport assessments, with 

the resultant impacts on air quality and congestions are extended to cover major and 

local corridors and junctions, so that the full impact of an expanded and more 

economically attractive airport are fully represented and considered as part of the 

DCO process. 

Question 4 – The Government has set out its approach to surface access for a 

Heathrow Northwest Runway scheme. Please tell us your views. 

Improved surface access to Heathrow is one of Wokingham Borough Council’s 

aspirations and we are supportive of the DfT’s targets for public transport use of at 

least 50% by 2030 and at least 55% by 2040.  We are conscious that many single 

flights require a return car journey simply to drop off or meet an air traveller and that 

these car journeys contribute to capacity problems on the M4, add to traffic noise, 

cause congestion on the M4 and at Heathrow and adversely affect the air quality 

throughout their journeys.  

Wokingham Borough Council supports the Berkshire Thames Valley Berkshire LEP’s 

wish to see the Western Rail Link to Heathrow fully operational by December 2024.  

Page 10



Appendix 

3 
 

This will require the present gap in funding to be bridged to allow this project to 

proceed on time.  We wish to see the potential use of Western Rail Link maximised. 

The link was conceived as a shuttle between Reading and Heathrow but the 

remodelled Reading Station has been designed as a through station and we wish to 

see high train utilisation and efficient use of platforms by through running of services 

beyond Reading to the west to enhance connectivity.  Plans exist to extend 2 out of 

the 4 trains per hour to Oxford or beyond.  We wish to see the other 2 trains each 

hour extended to Basingstoke. This will require the ‘deferred’ electrification of the 

Reading – Basingstoke as we expect that only electric trains will be permitted to 

operate into the bored tunnels to Heathrow.    We are also concerned that Western 

Rail Link may terminate at Terminal 5 and not run to Terminal 2/3. 

But we consider that it is essential that DfT specifies: 

 Exactly what is considered ‘public transport’ – we can all agree that use of 

trains is public transport, but the interface between mini-buses and people 

mover type taxis will need careful definition if the number of return car trips 

with single passengers is to be reduced significantly. 

 How the percentage using public transport is to be measured. 

 What actions will be required of the promoter, Heathrow Airport Limited, if the 

numbers using public transport fails to achieve the prescribed target?  These 

actions could include the introduction of a Congestion Charge on vehicles 

accessing the terminal buildings at Heathrow as suggested by the promoter. 

Southern Rail Access.  We are aware of the numerous schemes and aspirations 

for some form of rail access to Heathrow from the south.  The Council values any 

additional surface connectivity to the airport and should this option be developed it 

would give residents living in Earley, Winnersh and the town of Wokingham a choice 

of routes from Wokingham station, via either Reading or Staines. 

Question 5.1 – Air Quality Measures.  We agree that all practical measures need 

to be specified and implemented to maintain air quality.  This includes achieving the 

targets and the identification of strategies to promote for public transport usage to 

and from the airport. Greater use of existing park and rides should be considered as 

part of the evidence base development to facilitate achieving the target of 50% trips 

to arrive by public transport. 

Question 5.2 – Noise Supporting Measures. Although the nearest part of 

Wokingham Borough to Heathrow is some 14 miles away and no part of the Borough 

is near the 57dB noise contour line, a significant number of residents within the 

Borough find aircraft noise intrusive, particularly from easterly operations.   

The Council recognises the effort that Heathrow Airport Limited is making to reduce 

the impact of aircraft noise and that the newer commercial aircraft are less noisy 

than even their immediate predecessors.  Heathrow Airport should continue to 

encourage the use of modern aircraft by the use of landing charges. 

The Council supports current work to assess steeper approaches and departures as 

a way of further reducing the impact of aircraft noise.  Early morning arrivals cause 

Page 11



Appendix 

4 
 

disproportionate annoyance and we welcome the proposal for a ban on night flights 

from an expanded Heathrow. 

We note the concurrent consultation on UK Airspace and understand that this seeks 

to update navigation to maximise airspace by the use of more accurate GPS based 

navigation methods.  While this will allow flight paths to avoid, to an extent, overflying 

towns it may also concentrate noise on other dwellings and the respite measures 

being explored may not completely satisfy those affected. 

Question 5.3 – Carbon Emissions.  We accept the conclusion in the NPS that the 

Northwest Runway at Heathrow can be delivered within the UK’s carbon obligations.  

Nevertheless, we would wish to see all efforts made to minimise carbon emissions, 

for example by the use of electric vehicles for surface access and for airside ground 

vehicles.  The public have become very aware of the problems caused to health by 

pollution and noise, and major projects such as this will be accused of adding to 

those risks.  The major expansion of Heathrow Airport will be an example of such a 

risk but is an essential development in order to help the UK to remain competitive. 

Question 5.4 - Compensation for Local Communities. No comment from 

Wokingham Borough Council required. 

Question 6 – The Government has set out a number of planning requirements 

that a Heathrow Northwest Runway scheme must meet in order to operate. 

Please tell us your views. Are there any other requirements the Government 

should set out? 

No comment from Wokingham Borough Council required. 

Question 7 – The Appraisal of Sustainability sets out the Government’s 

assessment of the Heathrow Northwest Runway scheme, and considers 

alternatives. Please tell us your views. 

No comment from Wokingham Borough Council required. 

Question 8 – Do you have any additional comments on the draft Airports 

National Policy Statement or other supporting documents? 

No comment from Wokingham Borough Council required. 

Question 9 – The Government has a public sector equality duty to ensure 

protected groups have the opportunity to respond to consultations. Please tell 

us your views on how this consultation has achieved this. 

No comment from Wokingham Borough Council required. 

10 - Additional comments from Wokingham Borough Council’s lead member 

for highways  

Our lead member for highways is in favour of the proposed expansion of Heathrow 

Airport for many reasons, including employment, competitiveness in air transport, 

and local growth/income.  Over and above the question asked in the Draft NPS our 

Page 12



Appendix 

5 
 

lead member expects further assurance work and consultation on the following 

points: 

1. A sound plan to make the airport expansion decision on time.  

2. To plan the layout and construction development such that it minimises the 

expanded surface area & time taken.  

3. Steps are demonstrably shown to minimise the inevitable traffic impacts it will 

cause to local traffic routes.  

4. That related transport projects (eg. rail and road and tube) are all done [for 

sustainability], and timed to benefit the airport project.  

5. That the projected facts & figures and benefits are soundly based.  

6. That the funding is “guaranteed” to project completion.   

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	IMD15 Consultation Response to the Draft Airports National Policy Statement
	17.05.05_Consultation Airports NPS_DW


